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WHERE TREES HAVE GONE?
The unprecedented militarization has adversely affected every sphere of life and liberty in the state of Jammu and Kashmir. The militarization affects have been time and again highlighted by media like the occupation of the land, however, one of the serious aspect of the militarization which was least highlighted is the colossal deforestation of the jungles of Kashmir since 1989. The forests and Rakh and Farm areas were robbed off their beauty as lakhs of tress were chopped off and smuggled by the unbridled Ikhwani force enjoyed army and pro-Indian politicians backing. The massive illegal forest loot warrants in-depth study by an environmentalist group concerned and working on climatic changes known as global warming.        
The outbreak of militancy followed by dreaded Ikhwan era, in nexus with army and politicians, under a nefarious design slaughtered millions of trees without facing any resistance from anywhere. One example known to people in south Kashmir, which had fallen to the Ikhwanis in mid-90s, who besides hunting the combatant Kashmiris and their sympathizers Jamaat-e-Islamia activists make hay by slaughtering trees planted in the Rakh and Farm and the forest area (Ninglee). 
During our recent visit to an area in north Kashmir scores of the people testified that how the renegades forced people in their operation and a group of local contractors helped in buying the booty. According to an RTI info received from Rakh and farm 22, 000, 00/- trees were cut in Rakh and Farm areas alone. Another RTI was sent to the Forest Department to known the scale of damage caused to the forest land; however, the department in its response claimed all the records were burnt.
Kuka Parrey, the Ikhawan chief, during an interview had admitted of cutting of trees and conducting illegal timber trade for sustaining his men. So was admitted by another Ikhwan leader Javaid Shah, in his book Aur Karavan Banta Gaya. There was a nexux between the Ikhawnis and politicians. 
 One of the examples of a politician being the part of the sinister loot was of former National Conference Minister, Chaudhary, Mohammad Ramzan, who was supplied with the timber by the army.
According to scores of testimonies gathered from different villages of Bandipora, the army officials used to made furniture from the looted timber and then smuggled out it to their native places. The walnut furniture decorated in the houses of the army officials in different parts of India is all booty, which they got during their operation in the state. The pity is even the contractors who were getting the timber at throwaway prices from the Ikhwanis have joined Hurriyat Conference with people least knowing about their illicit activities.  
It is not astonishing that no enquiry or FIR was initiated against the Ikhwanis for slaughtering of trees, as the police agencies won’t dare to investigate the loot. The second facet is that the higher forest authorities had instructed their lower rung staff that they are helpless and cannot do anything. The employees who dared to inform the police or file FIR, not even mentioning the names of the Ikhwanis, were killed. Some of the forest officials, even at the lower rank, take the loot as an opportunity and add their share of loot by registering the annihilation as ‘militant loss’. 
The immediate need of the hour is a deep study must be conducted to find out the total losses caused by this illegal deforestation, as it is a serious issue and pinpoint the culpable persons behind this massive loot at least the govt. would have done it later when Ikhwan phenomenon was waning. There was a need to appoint a statutory or other enquiry but understandably governments have reasons not to do so. 
Not only the public property was looted but in north there are large-scale allegations of trees were chopped off and sold from the private land and the owners of it doing nothing whatsoever. The Editor himself is a witness to the destruction of hundreds of 50 / 60 years-old poplar trees by militant-turned-Ikhwanis at Bagh-e-Mehtab, situated at peripheries of Srinagar, planted long before by then owner Genrela Rehmatullah. The big question is where the proceeds of this loot have gone. 
Some of the Ikhwani leadership assets in the valley are known and through reliable sources we have learnt that out of the proceeds of the loot, they have purchased property outside the state in Chandigarh, Jammu and even at Delhi. It is not only the question of money but the issue of illegal deforestation by the Ikhwanis in collaboration with their mentors army and pro-Indian politicians resulting in wide scale environmental terrorism has so far not been highlighted. 
We are living in an era of globalizations and now not nuclear threat but the environmental degradation has now become a global issue. The environmental groups at least could have been persuaded or locally it could have been highlighted like our report on floods 2014 – Occupational Hazards – highlighting the impact of the militarization and its contributing factors towards the unprecedented flood Kashmir experienced last year. Ironically, some International Organizations are more concerned about the trees, wild life and animal rights, they could have been approached to conduct a research on this issue and the factors and persons responsible behind this phenomenon be exposed. This could have been very interesting for the researchers or strategic studies about this issue. The CCS has its own limitations and conduct research on every issue is beyond its resources and expertise.
Nothing is likely to be expected from the government at this juncture at least a preliminary study can be done and perpetrators be identified behind this phenomenon. 
                
 SOPORE CONUNDRUM
GUNMEN KILL FOUR CIVILIANS, COMMUNICATION TOWERS ATTACKED
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The sudden spurt in violent activities resulted into killing of four civilians including a political activist and a former militant in Sopore triggered fear-waves across the area, part of district Baramulla in north Kashmir. The area has been frequently declared a challenge by the state agencies for finding the area difficult to deal, as the pro-freedom and anti-India sentiment there is deep and strong. The series of attacks, first of which was carried out in May on a BSNL franchise shop at New Colony in Sopore, killing an employee and injuring two others, on tele-communication towers and civilian killings by gunmen so far obscured in a mysterious cover of unidentified gunmen has put the area on the edge. However, there is a little-known organization “Lashker-e-Islam” which took responsibility of the attacks and threatened more attacks in future as well. The United Jehad Council (UJC), a conglomerate of militant groups operating in Kashmir, and Hurriyat Conference (G) were the first to condemn the wanton attacks they believe were aimed at maligning the Kashmir movement. 
As per a volunteer from Sopore, who reported to The Informative Missive, that the area face desertion much before the dusk starts covering the day. Fear has gripped the entire tehsil. People are clueless who the people behind the attacks were and why mobile towers and civilians were targeted. Every person is fear stricken. The volunteer said, it is horrible to be in Sopore be it a day or night time. There is a complete paranoia in the tehsil.
In the aftermath of the series of violent incident, frisking and identity checks have increased in Sopore, so have started mid-night knocks instilling a sense of nightmare in people. People accused the state forces of harassment while searches. 
 (
CIVILIANS KILLED IN JUNE BY UNKNOWN GUNMEN IN SOPORE
Altaf-ur-Rehman
 Sheikh   
Sopore
   
Tehreek
-e-
Hurriyat
June 09-2015
Khursheed
 Ahmad 
Bhat
 
Sopore
   
Shopkeeper (
traders
 leader)   
June 12-2015
Mehraj
-
ud
-Din  
Badami
 
Bagh
, 
Sopore
  
Ex-militant of JKLF   
  
June 14-2015
Aijaz
 Ahmad 
Reshi
     
Mundiji
, 
Sopore
      
Ex-militant 
HuM
    
June 15-2015
)Despite the holy month of Ramzan, people in evening avoid Masjid to offer prayers, as there is no guarantee of one’s return alive. According to locals, those who step out during early mornings or late evenings face stern frisking by state forces, which has increased their deployment in the town. The impact of Sopore attacks were seen in Srinagar as well, a cell-phone tower was attacked in Srinagar’s Haba Kadal area in which a civilian was injured. In response to the Srinagar attack, police crack down on youth and more than 80 people have been detained and scores of bikes have been seized by the police, the police said. Most of the detainees were either former militants or boys, police said were involved in stone pelting.   
 Across Sopore, police have put up black and white posters of two men—Abdul Qayoom Najar and Imtiyaz Ahmad Kandoo—and announced a bounty of Rs 10 lakh for each of them. Police claim that Kandoo and Najar are the militants responsible for the killings taking place in the town. 
The mysterious attacks started last month in which two civilians were killed for having part of telecommunication companies. A young man, Rafiq Ahmad Hanji of Handwara was killed when the gunmen attacked a mobile outlet in Sopore while the other civilian, Ghulam Hassan Dar of Sopore was shot dead for allowing his land to be used for mobile tower. 
On June 24, in another twist to events unknown persons handed over a letter to the Imam of Jamia Masjid Sopore asking non-locals, including labourers, to leave the area within the next three days.
Last month, similar letters from an unknown organisation called Lashkar-e-Islami were also found pasted in many areas of Sopore, which asked non-locals to vacate the area, and threatened them and their landlords. Afterwards, hundreds of non-local labourers, including people working in hotels and small factories left the town. However, some continue to work in the area.
	On June 26, in response to the anonymous threat letters army men from different army camps, but mostly from 22 RR, visited Arampora, Batpora and Rahim Sahab areas of Sopore town and met with non-local people including labourers, carpenters, masons, hoteliers etc and their landlords. The army asked for their phone numbers and asked them to report if there was any ‘suspicious movement’ in the area.
1. ALTAF-UD-REHMAN’S KILLING: 
June 09: Altaf-ur-Rehman Sheikh, 46, an activist of Hurriyat Conference-led by Syed Ali Shah Geelani, was shot dead by gunmen.
The gunmen fired at Altaf, a pharmacist with the health department, in Noor Colony area of the town when he walking towards his home from sub-district hospital Sopore after completing his night duty. Although he was taken to the hospital, doctors declared him ‘brought dead on arrival’.
The gunmen had fired three shots at him from a very close range, one in the head and two in the heart, block medical officer Dr Masood said.
Altaf is survived by wife and three children: two daughters aged 12 and 8 and a five-year-old son.
 Tens of hundreds of people from Iqbal Nagar and neighbouring areas demonstrated in the town, shouting pro-freedom and anti-India slogans. They blamed “Indian agencies” for the killing, terming it an “example of state terrorism”.
Shops and other business establishments, petrol pumps and other institutions shut down their business. Thousands of people participated in his funeral.
 Altaf’s death took place in the backdrop of two recent developments: defence minister Manohar Parrikar’s controversial remark that the state should “fight terror with terror” and the recent telecom crisis in the state.
IN REHMAN’S KILLING POLICE SAY	
 Deputy inspector general of police (north Kashmir) Gareeb Das said the killing “seems to be part of a larger conspiracy.”
 “We are investigating and we would soon reach to the culprits. We are probing why this group is targeting civilians only,” Das said without naming the “group”.
 “Altaf was very a renowned person. He was very active among the public as he was involved in almost every public gathering,” Das said.
 Asked why he had been detained for four days if he were such a renowned person, Das said, “Yes, the police had picked him up for questioning (in connection with investigations into telecom attacks). But later we released him.” He said the killing “might be” linked to the telecom attacks.
Who was Altaf:
Altaf-ur-Rehman Sheikh was an active member of Tehreek-e-Hurriyat, which is a constituent of the Hurriyat (G), for the past 18 years and had been jailed for a total of about eight years for pro-freedom activities.
Altaf’s father Mohammad Yousuf Sheikh has been a senior member of Jamaat-e-Islami. After Jamaat parted ways with Geelani, Yousuf joined the Tehreek-e-Hurriyat.
Altaf’s elder brother Abdul Rouf Sheikh had been killed by the army in Srinagar in 2000.
 The Sheikh family hails from Trehgam village, the birthplace of JKLF founder Maqbool Bhat, in Kupwara district. Altaf was born there.
Due to repeated harassment by the government forces and Ikhwanis, the Sheikhs shifted to Sopore. The pro-freedom sentiment thus ran in the family and Altaf imbibed it early in his life.
“His passionate speeches always inspired the people and always earned him the wrath of the Indian state. He was so dedicated to Kashmir cause,” a TeH member said.
 	The government had jailed him for eight years on charges of being an “over ground worker” of militants, an allegation refuted by the family.
Known as ‘Doctor Saeb’ among the local community, arrests and “custodial torture” had affected his health, his family members said.
 	One visible sign of that “torture” was back disc slip, forcing him to use a walking stick.
 	The police had detained Altaf for four days and released him only two days ago following a series of attacks on mobile towers and telecom outlets. Two persons were killed in the attacks believed to have been carried out by an unknown group, Lashkar-e-Islam.
2. KHURSHEED AHMAD’S KILLING 
On the late evening of June 12, Khursheed Ahmad Bhat, 35, a traders’ leader was targeted and killed by the gunmen belong to the same group LEI. He was murdered close to his house home. Khursheed was rushed to the hospital where he was declared brought dead. 
Reports said, Khursheed, in past, had been arrested for sometime for his alleged role in stone pelting incidents. He was running a shop in the locality and was president of Traders Federation, Bomai.
3. MEHRAJ-UD-DIN’S KILLING 
After two days, on June 14 morning, the unknown gunmen again appeared and killed a former JKLF militant in Badamibagh area of Sopore. 
According to the locals, gunmen came in a car and fired at least five shots at Mehraj-ud-din Dar son of Mohammad Ahsan Dar a few metres away from his home.
 	Me’raj-ud-din died on way to sub-district hospital Sopore. Block medical officer SDH Dr Masood Ahmad said the deceased had a bullet wound in the head.
A former JKLF militant, Mehraj owned a poultry shop in Badamibagh market. Father of two minor daughters, he was not affiliated to any social or political organisation.
4. AIJAZ AHMAD RESHI MURDER 
On June 15, in less than 24 hours after killing Mehraj-ud-Din unidentified gunmen struck in Sopore and killing another former militant in the area. This is the fourth civilian killing in June and sixth killing in the past three weeks. 
Aijaz Ahmad Reshi, 39, son of Abdur Rahim of Mundji—12 kms from Sopore town was leading a normal life and had no political or militancy connection. 
Reports said, two persons appeared at his shop-cum-residence. Before he could verify their credentials one of them aimed his pistol aimed at him and pumped bullets in his body from point blank range. Two of the bullets hit on his head and he died there and then. However, he was shifted to hospital only to be declared dead by the doctors.   
Aijaz was a former militant of Harkat-ul-Mujahideen outfit. He has spent some five years in jail and was now helping the family with a small business. The slain person was father of five daughters.
The police official said soon after the incident, locals tried to catch hold of unidentified gunmen. “However, they opened fire with a pistol and fled from the scene,” he said.
The official said a stray dog chased the killers of Reshi. “One of the assailants fired and killed the dog on spot. We have reports that the dog caused injury to one of the assailants’ minutes after they shot at Reshi,” he said. “We are conducting raids at clinics to locate the injured person.” A report from the area said residents pelted stones on police. As the police party reached the spot, people hurled stones on them. The people also chanted anti-government slogans.
Soon after the incident, authorities announced closure of all government and private schools in Mundji and its adjoining areas.
As the news of Reshi's killing spread, Sopore town observed a complete shutdown, demanding immediate arrest of those behind the “killing spree”. 
The killing also triggered protest demonstration in Baramulla town.
Reports said hundreds of youth took to streets and protested against the killing spree in Sopore. Baramulla town observed a shutdown against the killing.
The protesting youths, reports said, damaged several vehicles on Tehsil road including a police water carrier.
As the protesters increased in number, police swung into action and lobbed several tear gas shells to disperse them. The agitating youths were later pushed towards Cement Bridge in the town where clashes between police and continued for some time.
Police said to avoid further killings in Sopore, security forces have “decided to take concrete measures.”
“A Special Investigation Team (SIT) has been formed to inquire into the killings,” police said.
The decision to constitute SIT was taken at high-level meeting at Sopore on June 21, which was co-chaired by Director General of Police, K Rajender Kumar and General Officer Commanding 15 corps, Lt General Subrata Saha.
According to a police official, who was part of meeting, more Army and police will be deployed in Sopore to “tackle” the situation.
The official said Police was asked to carry out raids and arrest the suspects quickly.
CM ORDERS PROBE
On June 15, Chief Minister Mufti Muhammad Sayeed issued directions to the Home Department for stepping up investigations to unmask the killers..
The police spokesman said Police has “taken all possible steps to fast-track investigation into all the relevant aspects of the incidents and has set up special monitoring mechanism to keep track of proper investigation.”
While the official spokesman said CM has ordered “time-bound inquiry”, the official handout didn’t mention the time allotted to complete this probe.

BANDIPORA TEAM VISIT TO ASCERTAIN REASONS BEHIND MASSIVE FOREST LOOT 

On May 23, 2015, a three member team of JKCCS visited district Bandipora in north Kashmir to ascertain the reasons behind the perilous annihilation of the forests in the area. District Bandipora is a picturesque district located on the northern banks of Wular Lake - the biggest fresh water lake in Asia.  The district falls 50 km away from district Srinagar, summer capital of J&K. The district is bounded by Kupwara district in the west, Baramulla district in the south and Srinagar and Ganderbal districts in the east. According to the 2011 census Bandipora district has a population of 385,099. 
The district had dense forests which add to its beauty.  For many years there were reports of Ikhwanis looting these jungles, however, so far no independent survey or investigation was conducted. There is a deep relation between the fatal destruction of the forests and the ongoing conflict.  After 1989, when armed conflict erupted, Bandipora has been deeply militarized and had witnessed unbridled ikhwan era. The area had also sizeable militant presence, who normally took refuge in these forests to evade military attention.  
Bandipora often hogged the media limelight for human rights abuses like infamous human shield of five persons in 2004, extortions, harassments, forced labor, encounters etc. However, amid all the human rights violations in the area, the issue which has evaded the focus of media and NGOs /groups working against deforestation; is the massive deforestation of the district forests. 
The team left Srinagar at around 9:00 am and first reached Preng village of the district. There the team interviewed Javaid Ahmad Khanday, a local tailor, who provided a list of villages where enormous tree cutting has taken place under the nose of state administration and with the backing of the army. “From June 1994 onwards when the Ikhwanis era was on its peak, the tress were targeted and the timber was smuggled to non-registered contractors having hand in glove with those Ikhwanis. Under coercion the villagers were taken to the forests for tree chopping. The attrition of forests first started from Makhdoomyari which spread to the other villages like Banyari, Saddarkote Payeen, Shahgund, Gund Jehangir, Kanyari, Watlab, Zalpora, Naidkhai, Kolhom, Lankishpora, Zurimanz, Kyuhnus, Allos Gath, Preng, Madwan, Hajin, Chrengpora etc.”
“The massive destruction of the forests continued for one year. The thinning of the jungles are quite visible, however, nobody bothers to report or protests this massive onslaught on the jungles. Officially, these forests fall in the control of State Forest Department, Panchayat and Rakh and Farms. These jungles are sprawled on thousands of acres of land. The employees of these govt. departments were under extreme pressure from those Ikhwanis. None of the officials ever mustered courage either to confront the Ikhwanis or to bring this attrition to the notice of the media. These Ikhwanis were enjoying full backing and patronage from the 13 Rashtriya Rifles (RR) stationed at Safapora,” Javaid stated while relating the destruction of the forests to the visiting team.          
After interviewing Javaid, the team moved to Chrengpora another village of the district where from complaints of deforestation and human rights abuses were coming out. In this village the team talked to a local Numberdar Ghulam Mohi-ud-din Dar who stated, “I have suffered millions of rupees loss at the hands of Ikhwanis. They destroyed 8 kanals of my land replete with trees and had taken away cash of Rs. 1 Lac. They also plundered my shop”.  
Dar while relating a killing of his relative by Ikhwanis said, “I had witnessed murder of Habibullah Lorihanji, my brother-in-law, who was killed by an Ikhwani Ishaq Dar after being taken for forced labour. Somehow, I got the FIR registered against the killing with the police. To dissuade me from perusing the matter the Ikhwanis resorted to serious threats to me.”   
The continuous harassment of Dar forced him to migrate to different places. “Since the Ikhwanis were uncontrollable and can execute killings at their will. The escalation in the threats forced me to leave my home for five consecutive years. My return was possible only when there was slight ebb in the Ikhwan activities,” Dar stated.   
Dar while talking to the visiting team stated, “In 1994 alone I clearly remember that the Ikhwanis, controlled by Kuka Parray, has killed 38 civilians. Most of them were either associated with Jammat-e-Islami or had protested against deforestation by these Ikhwanis. Some of them victims were Ghulam Hasaan Patwari, Habibullah Lorihanji, Mohammad Kamal, a school headmaster, Ghulam Ahmad Dar, a Jamaat sympathizer, Abdul Samad Dar son of Abdul Aziz Dar who has gone to Hajin 13 RR army camp, which also shared space for Ikhwanis, to lodge his protests against jungle annihilation. Samad’s body was fished out from river Jehlum after some days. It was later known that Samad was killed by Mohammad Maqbool Seri and Bashir Parray alias Bilal Yar, both infamous renegades.”  
The Numberdar identified few State Forest Department guards namely, Assadullah Dar S/o Ghulam Mohammad Dar R/o Chrengpora, Baniyari. Bandipora, Abdul Rehman Mir, Abdul Ahad Rather S/o Ghulam Mohammad Rather R/o Preng (Panchayat Rakha), Mohammad Sultan Dar S/o Abdul Khaliq Dar R/o Banyari A who were helping and facilitating the Ikhwanis in the loot.
The Numberdar while giving details of the destruction stated, “As many as five hundred thousand (50, 000, 00) trees planted on Rakh and Farm land measuring 15000 acre were cut and smuggled by the Ikhwanis. Those trees were planted 40 years ago by Social Forestry Department.”
Dar said when the destruction was brought into the notice of then Deputy Commissioner. Baramulla Mr. Mehta he too express his helplessness and asked us to watch it mutely, otherwise, the Ikhwanis would kill you all. 
Dar further stated, a nursery of one Haji Mohammad Ramzan Dar of Aaro, Makhdumyari spread on 46 Kanals of land was also looted by the Ikhwanis. Roughly the cost of that nursery was 13 Lac. In Makhdumyari and other villages, Dar said, people were taken for forced labour.   
Dar identified some of the contractors who were dealing in smuggling as: Ghulam Mohammad Dar S/o Tunda alias Mam Jan Tunda (Brother of German Tunda) a notorious Renegade, Abdul Ahad Rather S/o Ghulam Mohammad Rather, Bashir Wani, Nazir Kochak of Hajin, Mohammad Maqbool Teeli. None of the contractors was registered.
Then the team moved to Sadunara another village where the members interacted with an old man Sanaullah Mir, 70, a retired forest official. His one son Tariq Ahmad Mir, a 10th class student, was killed by Ikhwanis and another son, a militant, was killed in an encounter with the troops. 
Sanaullah said, “Tariq was killed by Ikhwanis - Bashir Chanja, Fayaz Jong and Mohammad Peer alias Maame Peer. Tariq was kidnapped by them and his body was recovered from Saddarkote. He was killed for his defiance.” Sanaullah Mir lodged an FIR in Tariq’s killing with concerned police station; however, police never initiated any enquiry.  
While giving details about the deforestation Sanaullah Mir while corroborating the statement made by the Javaid Ahmad Khanday said, “Ikhwanis with the help of army destroyed the forests spread on thousands of acres of land. Tones of green gold were smuggled out. There was no one within in or outside the administration courageous enough to question the loot. Millions of rupees were made out of the smuggling. All the smuggling was done under the nose of police, who were watching helplessly.” 
Sanaullah said when he brought the smuggling into the notice of then District Forest Officer (DFO) he was asked to maintain silence. “Everybody was silently watching the loot. I met then DFO and informed him about the destruction but he asked me he can’t stop this as nothing was not in his control. He said he is helpless and can’t do anything as the loot was done in well-coordinated manner having involvement of army, state and Ikhwanis,” Sanaullah stated.      
Mohammad Altaf Wagay of Sadunara while sharing his experiences with the team said, “On Friday 26th April 1996, 3rd Ramadan, when I went to the house of Mohammad Shafi, my neighbor, to watch cricket match. There was no electricity and I had carried with me a dry battery to run his black and white TV.  In the meantime, an armed renegade Irshad also arrived to watch the game. He asked me to give the battery to him. I vehemently refused. Irked he hit me with the gun butt on my ribs. The blow was so strong that my ribs got fractured and I was bed ridden for 3 ½ months.” 
Altaf while giving his account about the massive timber smuggling in his area said, “The timber smuggling by Ikhwanis were well thought out plan. Not alone the Ikhwanis were involved. There were other agencies army and secret state agencies which were facilitating the massive forest annihilation.” 
Some of the Ikhwanis, who according to Altaf were involved in rapes, killings, abductions, extortions etc, were identified as: Fayaz Nabid, Bashir Ahmad Parray alias Bilal Yar, Bashir Baand, Manna Parray, Gul Galwan of Safapora, Mamme Peer, Irshad, Abdul Rashid Billa, Rashid Kone, Abdul Majeed of Saadonara, Zahoor Ahmad, Nazir Ahmad, Fayaz Ahmad, Bashir Ahmad Chanje, Fayaz Jonga, Ayoub Khan of Saadonara, Ghulam Hassan alias Yasin (Killed), Ghulam Ahmad Gamgeen etc
Below is the detailed table, provided by Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din Dar Numberdar, of the villages where forest destruction was massive:-
	S. No.
	Villages under Rakh and Farms Department
	Land (in Kanals)

	1
	Hari Bathi 
	4000

	2
	Sabir Bathi
	3000

	3
	Gad Hanzyari
	1500

	4
	Guryari
	1000

	5
	Hakrihama
	1000

	6
	Bakhshi Bal
	500

	7
	Nichyari
	250

	8
	Hoonzuwa
	250

	9
	Kalyari
	1000

	10
	Kaw Bathi
	2000

	11
	Kandarhama
	900

	
	Villages under Panchayat Department
	Land (in Kanals)

	1
	Banyari
	500

	2
	Bund Preng to Makhdumyari
	200 Kanals Including Veer Trees

	3
	Makhdumyari to Madwan Panchayat
	200

	4
	Hajin Panchayat 
	3 Compartments

	5
	Makhdumyari to Shahgund
	200

	
	VILLAGES UNDER FOREST DEPARTMENT
	LAND (IN KANALS)

	1
	8 compartments (7 & 8 Compartment is in the possession of Ikhwani)
	1500



The people interviewed by the CCS team provided the below mentioned information about the Ikhwan commanders, who were commanding the Ikhwanis to commit human rights abuses and timber smuggling. Kuka Parray, Usman Majeed, Shafiq Pandit and Lassa Parray were the most notorious Ikhwan commanders in Bandipora under whose control and command massive timber smuggling took place. Those commanders made millions of rupees out of the smuggling. These Ikhwan commanders have enormous property on their name. Kuka Parray was having four houses to his name one of which, worth millions of rupees, he had gifted to his daughter. His total property worth was over 15 crores approximately. Usman Majeed has amassed huge wealth. He has property not only in Kashmir but also in Jammu. Similarly Shafiq Pandit`s property worth was about 8 crore. Lassa Parray is having a house having one crore worth. 
These Ikhwan commanders’ massive anti-people activities provoked militant attacks against them. Kuka Parray was assassinated in September 2003 during a cricket match where he has gone to attend it as chief guest, while few abortive attempts on the life of Usman Majeed was made. Usman Majeed is associated with Indian Congress and had served as Minister of State for Planning and Development during PDP and Congress rule and currently MLA Bandipora. 



A MILITANT’S FAMILY FACES HUMILIATION, TORTURE AND HARASSMENT

Abdul Rashid Sheikh, a militant of Hizbul Mujahedeen, son of Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din Sheikh of Marazi Mohalla, Tantraypora, Palhallan was killed mysteriously in 1995. However, his family blames state forces for killing him extra judicially. Rashid, earlier, a sympathizer of Hizbul Mujahideen was repeatedly harassed by army and Ikhwanis for his sympathies towards the militancy. Rashid’s brother and father were subjected to heinous forms of torture at the hands of Special Task Force and the harassment from Ikhwanis. Even at one occasion Farooq was taken to some location for elimination. The family spends seven months in migration to evade the harassment.  
Farooq made a detailed statement before The Informative Missive that how his family was subjected to various forms of harassment, humiliation and torture by the state forces for being relative of a militant. 
 	In the year 1993, Border Security Forces (BSF) Magam Camp conducted a crackdown of Palhallan.  Three notorious renegades Muma Kanna, Aam Kanna and Qasim Khar were along with BSF. During the crackdown the locals of Palhallan were assembled in High School Palhallan. An identification parade was held and 28 persons were picked up by the BSF including Rashid’s brother Farooq. They all were tortured in a nearby Govt. High School premises.  
Rashid was arrested after half-an-hour of his brother Farooq’s arrest.  However, Farooq was released and Rashid was detained.  BSF and the three renegade commanders had already information of Rashid’s activities and his sympathies towards HM. There was another renegade called Ghulam Muhammad Tantray of Palhallan, part of the crackdown, associated with Muslim Mujahedeen [MM], counterinsurgency force. He was the one on whose information all the 28 persons were taken into the detention. 
Rashid’s maternal uncle Muhammad Sultan Bhat, a teacher, of Palhallan approached Aam Kanna requesting him to impress upon BSF to release his nephew. He while reminding Aam Kanna that he had taught him in School, Aam told him while pointing towards Ghulam Mohammad Tantray that he was the person on whose information all the arrests were made and he can’t do anything. However, after few hours Aam Kanna managed Rashid’s release. In that period of detention Rashid was badly tortured. He was given electric shocks, his skin and his part was burnt. For seven hours (10 am to 5 pm) he remained in BSF detention. The torture had made him unable to walk and on a handcart he was taken to home. 
After getting well, he resumed his studies but at the same time maintained his covert relation with HM, as a supporter. In April 1995, he joined the outfit. In the same year Ikhwanis started raiding Rashid’s house. The Ikhwanis were commanded by Ghulam Nabi Tantray and Ismail Kawa.  Once during a raid Ghulam Muhammad Kawa, an Ikhwani, told Rashid’s father Ghulam Mohi-ud-din that he doesn’t have any enmity with their family and he named Shabaan Kawa for the frequent raids during which the family face harassments. 
These Ikhwanis were frequently raiding the house to pressurize the family to produce Rashid.  The intimidations forced the family to migrate and it remained away for seven months. 
On November 9, 1995, on the eve of the Farooq’s marriage Ikhwanis cut off power supply to their house for two day. At the time of Farooq bringing his bride home, police from Pattan arrived with Rashid’s dead body.  He was killed at Watergam, Budgam.  He has bullets in his neck and chest. An FIR no. 179/1997 was lodged by police in Badgam police station. In the FIR Rashid’s code name Muhammad Ashraf was mentioned.  
	Even after his killing, the Ikhwanis keep coming to raid Rashid’s house and demanding weapons from his family. In 1997, STF camped at Palhalan through SPO Ghulam Muhammad Lone of Palhallan summoned Farooq. In the camp, he was not tortured.  0n the second day, Farooq’s father Ghulam Mohi-ud-din was also called to the camp. Both father and the son were made naked in front of each other and were ordered to slap each other. After that they were beaten by three persons from 8 pm to 12 am.  On the fourth day only the father was released. 
On fifth day, STF took Farooq out to some unknown location for killing. Farooq literally begged before an STF office (name not known) for his life. The officer threatened him of killing him in fake encounter. His continuous pleas mollified the STF and he was brought back to the camp.   
On 8th day of his detention, DSP Surjeet sent Ghulam Muhammad Lone to his maternal uncle Muhammad Sultan for ransom of Rs. 20000 in lieu of his release. The money was paid and Farooq was released. 
Again in 1998, Farooq was picked from his home by STF, Baramulla. Shabaan Kawa and Abdul Ahad Chopan were also with STF. Two other civilians, Fayaz Ahamd Tantray and Ghulam Muahmamd Bhat both residents of Palhallan were also picked up.  All the three were taken to G. Branch, Matches Factory, Baramulla.  The trio was kept in a cell. Only twice in seven days food was given to them. In the same cell they urinate which made the breathing almost impossible for them. Farooq’s family gave Rs. 5000 to Shaban Kawa and Ahad Chopan. Both the Ikhwanis  
Then these two went to the camp and told STF personnel there not to beat Farooq.  
	In the camp, they were tortured by SSP Mushtaq Sadiq and some BSF personnel one of whom was called as J.D in the camp.  Fayaz Ahmad Tantray and Ghulam Muhammad Bhat were tortured ruthlessly.  Petrol was put into the anus of Ghulam Muhammad and both of them were beaten and burnt badly.  
Farooq himself saw SSP Mushtaq Sadiq torturing Ghulam Muhammad and Fayaz Ahmad Tantray.  After eight days Farooq was released and after 3-4 days after Farooq’s release Fayaz and Ghulam Muhammad were also released.  But they were in half dead condition.  

MAN INJURED IN GRENADE ATTACK ON MOBILE TOWER IN SRINAGAR 

June 1: After Sopore attacks unknown persons hurled a grenade targeting a mobile town in Habba Kadal area of district Srinagar, triggering panic among mobile outlet owners. In the attack one person sustained injuries.   
The attack, first of its kind in the Srinagar city, happened around 12:00 pm. The civilian injured was identified as Shahoo Imtiyaz on whose courtyard a moble tower was installed.
Communication system has been badly affected following a spate of attacks against telecom employees and those who have rented out space for installation of cellphone towers in north Kashmir in past ten days.
	In the backdrop of the attack, police set up makeshift check post at various places and took into custody, as per media reports, eighty persons and scores of bikes were seized. The arrested most of whom were either former militants or the youth police claimed were involved in stone throwing.   The arrested have been lodged at the police’s count-insurgency hub at Haft Chinar and other police stations of Srinagar
	Police said, all of them were suspects and were detained for questioning in connection with attacks on mobile towers. Some of them have been released as the towers have started functioning again and the threat of attacks has subsided.

SIKH PROTESTER KILLED IN POLICE FIRING
SIKH ACCUSES GOVT. ON RENEGING ON AGREEMENT

On June 4, a man was killed and six people, including two policemen, were injured as clashes erupted between police and a group of Sikhs who were protesting against removal of posters of slain Khalistani militant leader Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale in Jammu city. On June 11, Sikh leaders have reacted strongly to what they term the administration’s backtracking on the agreement made recently in the backdrop of the killing of a Sikh protestor in Jammu. Community leaders, including former MLC and Chairman J&K State Gurdwara Parbandhak Board, Sardar TS Wazir, are alleging that the state government has cheated the Sikh community by ignoring major demands which were agreed upon with top officials of the Jammu administration following the killing incident last week.
	Jagjit Singh, 33, of Chawla village of RS Pura was killed and six people including two cops were injured in clashes during which the mob pelted stones and police responded by cane-charging and teargas shelling in Satwari area of the city, police officials said.
 	Hospital sources, however, said the youth had died due to bullet injuries.
Trouble started when hundreds of Sikh men, armed with sticks and ‘kirpans’, converged on Ranibagh-Gandhigarh belt on Satwari-R S Pura road and blocked traffic in protest against the removal of Bhindranwale’s posters put up by an organisation of the community ahead of his death anniversary on June 6, the officials said.
 Raising slogans against police and government, some of them also tried to block the Jammu-Pathankote highway at Satwari. Reports said some of them also raised pro-Khalistan slogans.
 	Heavy contingent of police rushed to the spot and asked them remove blockade from the road and allow the traffic but Sikh youth pelted stones at police, triggering clashes.
 	This is for the first time that posters of the slain Sikh militant leader had come up in Jammu, the winter capital of Jammu and Kashmir.
 	A police officer was injured after being stabbed allegedly by some Sikh youth protesting against removal of these posters.
 	Sub-inspector Arun Kumar was critically wounded after he was attacked with a sharp edged weapon by some Sikh youth, police said, adding he has received several stitches and is admitted in GMC hospital with two other policemen.
 	Some members of Sikh community representing a particular organisation had put up posters of Bhindranwale, who demanded an independent Punjab, on Wednesday on Satwari-R S Pura road here ahead of a programme to pay tribute to him.
 	Station House Officer of Satwari police station removed the posters, triggering protests from Sikh youths.
“Talks between Sikh leaders and the administration were successful wherein all the demands of the community were accepted in the presence of the State Home Secretary RK Goyal, Director General of Police K Rajendra Kumar, Divisional Commissioner Pawan Kotwal and other senior civil and police officials, but today the major demands of the community have been ignored by the administration except the transfer of SSP Jammu Uttam Chand and suspension of SHO Satwari Kulbir Singh, and a case under murder charges registered against the SSP’s PSO.”
“Earlier, we were demanding a magisterial probe into the firing incident and violence, under the supervision of a sitting High Court Judge. This has been sidelined by the government and the probe handed over to Pawan Kotwal, which is unacceptable to the Sikh community,” he added.
Expressing serious concern over the registration of FIRs against Sikh youths and the formation of a SIT, Wazir said, “We feel that instead of defusing the unrest certain elements are arbitrarily provoking the Sikh community. When the entire matter was sorted out between the administration and our community, then such provocative steps can only increase misunderstanding and help disgruntled elements in creating confusion and unrest.”
“We are unable to understand what prompted the DIG Jammu to constitute a SIT on the eve of the tenth day of Jasjit Singh’s killing. Moreover, we are surprised why the state administration, which has committed to a judicial inquiry, is now asking the Div Com for the same, which is against justice and the law,” he said.
Wazir also said, “We have informed the administration about our serious concerns and we hope innocent Sikh youths won’t be further harassed under flimsy grounds. We are committed to peace and communal harmony, but continued injustice with the minority Sikh community in every sphere, particularly given that till date no probe has been launched into the 1984 and 1989 anti-Sikh riots in Jammu and the Chattisinghpora carnage, has badly shaken the faith of the community in justice delivery systems.”
Various Sikh organisations, including leaders of the J&K State Gurdwara Parbandhak Board, Shiromani Akali Dal (Badal) Shiromani Akali Dal (Amritsar), Jammu DGPC, Sikh Intellectuals Circle J&K, Sikh Students Federation and Sikh Welfare Front were also present on the occasion.

AZIZ’S SPINE CHILLING TORTURE NARRATION   

June 22: Abdul Aziz, 45, son of Chedia Bajar r/o Naripora, Moori, Kalaroos, Kupwara added in the list of tortured persons who has been rendered physically incapacitated. He was guided by one of the torture survivors, Maroof Lachi, his neighbor, to Srinagar to record his statement, as he was unknown about its location. It was Aziz’s first visit to Srinagar. Aziz looks older than of his age. He said he is in late 30s, however, by his looks he appears somewhere around in 50s. His shaky walk with bend back could invite anybody’s sympathetic attention. 
In 1992 Aziz’s elder cousin Yaqoob has gone over to Pakistan Administered Kashmir (PAK) for arms training. It was the time when most of the youth eyeing PAK for arms training to fight Indian rule. Yaqoob was among dozens of boys of his village who had crossed over to PAK. Soon he lands on the soil of PAK, army here stationed at Moori Camp started harassing and torturing Abdul Aziz and his brother Farooq. 
Abdul Aziz while talking to The Informative Missive said, “Soon Yaqoob went over to PAK, army (19 RR) started calling me and my brother Farooq to the Moori camp. We were pressurized to produce his whereabouts. Our response was we don’t know more than you (army) i.e. he went across. Then they pressured us to call him back. When we expressed our helplessness in getting him back, then the army C.O. Gautra ordered his men to torture us.” 
Aziz said, the army separates them in different rooms / torture cells and inflict different modes of tortures. “We brothers were being frequently detained and tortured in the Moori camp.  I have lost the count of how many times we were called into the camp and tortured. Army used to call us in the morning and kept us in the camp for the whole day and in the night we were tortured. Next morning, they set us free only to get our wounds treated. This practice continues for years together. The army units keep changing in the camp, however, there was no mitigation in our miseries,” Aziz lamented.
Aziz was not fluent in relating his ordeal; it appears that the torture has also adversely affected his recollecting ability. He struggled a lot in relating the sequence of the incidents. He has no idea of the dates of his arrest and count of his torture. He blamed frequent arrests and torture for upsetting his biological clock. 
Aziz while incoherently stating about the torture methods applied to him for years said, “Beating ruthlessly was quite a norm. They (soldiers) on the orders of their C.O. left no stone unturned in obliging their boss. The army frequently administered electric shocks to my tongue. Every shock bleeds my tough. The continuous electric shocks to my frontal private part and legs took away my physical strength particularly of my legs. My both legs are reduced to bones and with every passing day the weakness increases.  Now I am only confined to my small house. I am living a life of a physical and mental prisoner.”
Aziz when consulted doctors for treatment of his legs, he was told to arrange huge amount of money, as his treatment involves huge money. “Doctors said that the treatment to my damaged legs involve huge amount. Doctors said my legs are still in a recovery position but I think I have to live with all the pain, as I can’t afford the huge sum,” said the disappointed Aziz.
Aziz said his brother Farooq’s left arm has suffered badly and he is not able to use it for any purpose. “My legs and Farooq’s left arm are merely body parts not being used for any purpose,” Aziz lamented.  
From last many years Aziz took– Diclowin Plus, pain management tablets. “Every evening, before going to sleep, I have to take half a Diclowin tablet without which I can’t sleep. I am literally dependent on this medicine, as it ensures smooth and painless sleep,” Aziz stated.     

ARMY DENIES COMMANDEERING J&K TAXIS, BUT SAYS VEHICLES PAID FOR

[image: ]June 14: The Army in Jammu and Kashmir says it is not aware of the practice of requisitioning commercial taxis by its camps, and whenever it needed vehicles, it puts out advertisements in newspapers. A volunteer with The Informative Missive bring the harassment of drivers to its notice and to cover the coercion a reporter associated with an Indian national daily The Hindu was asked to do the reporting on it. (below the story appeared in the newspaper).
“I need to investigate the matter with the camp concerned as I don’t know if such a thing is happening,” Army spokesperson Lt. Col. N.N. Joshi told Indian national daily The Hindu, responding to reports from taxi drivers at Wagoora and Kreeri taxi stands that they were required to send a vehicle to the 29 Rashtriya Rifles camp here every evening and had been doing so for several years now.
Reporter warned
Soon after the Army was contacted for comment, a senior officer from the Wattergam camp urged the Hindu reporter to refrain from reporting on the practice, and said while the Army used vehicles from taxi stands, they also paid the drivers — a claim denied by the drivers.
“I cannot, however, tell you how much money we pay them or why we use their cars, as this is not an interview. I would suggest you don’t write this story,” the officer said.
Following The Hindu’s queries, the drivers at the Wagoora and Kreeri taxi stands told the Hindu reporter that Army men visited them on Saturday afternoon and asked them to sign a no-objection certificate, which they refused.
Services on roster
More than 20 drivers alleged that the practice had been going on for the past 13 years. The drivers are made to sign ‘a form’ or put their ‘thumb impression’ when they get their vehicles.
In a small office in the taxi stands of Kreeri and Wagoora villages, a chart is pasted on the wall. It is a roster that details the schedule of vehicles to report for Army duty.
“Most of us have bought the taxis on loan and for no fault of ours, we cannot earn our livelihood on a given day. Why should we give even one day’s income to the Army? They are not poor and have massive resources,” another driver, Yaqoob Ahmad Najar (name changed), said. “The Army refused to give a day’s salary for flood relief in Kashmir, why should we do it every month?”
Driver’s apprehensions 
Mushtaq Ahmad (name changed), a driver at the Wagoora taxi stand that also provides vehicles to the Wattargam Army camp, said he was scared to step out of his house after a newspaper published pictures of some of their vehicles, including his, at the site of a gun battle in Hardshura village last year.
“Sometimes we see our Tata Sumos ferrying seven or eight people dressed in phirans and then they go for night-raids in our own neighbourhood or an adjacent village and pick up people,” said Ahmad. “We just want to earn a living by driving our cars, not get killed on the road for being associated with night raids and operations.”
Last year in a protest, all the drivers parked their vehicles outside the Kreeri police station, but they said the police refused to help.
“We even met the local MLA Basharat Bukhari [who is at present the Minister for Law and Parliamentary Affairs] who advised us not to confront the Army. He said he would speak to the DC who would take the matter forward,” a driver said.
Why should we give even one day’s income to the Army? They have massive resources, say drivers.


PAK PRISONER, COP KILLED IN POLICE VAN BLAST
POLICE CLAIMED IT GOT VITAL CLUE

June 20: A Pakistani administered Kashmir prisoner and a constable were killed in a mysterious blast that took place inside a police vehicle which was escorting the under-trial. Two policemen were also critically injured in the incident which that took place in Hygam area on Srinagar-Baramulla highway. Police claimed to have got vital clues about the incident. 
Police identified the deceased Pakistani national as Wahid Noor Khan who was arrested in 2010 in connection with a militancy-related case. Police sources said after the under-trial was produced in Baramulla Court Complex, a blast took place near Haigam inside the police vehicle in he was being escorted to Central Jail Srinagar.
"The PAK militant who was an under-trial prisoner was killed on spot and three policemen were critically injured in the blast that took place inside the police vehicle," Deputy Inspector General (DIG) north Kashmir, Gareeb Dass told media.
Constable Abdul Majid of Beerwah Budgam, who was injured in the blast, succumbed at a hospital during treatment late evening.
Meanwhile, the three injured policemen were immediately rushed to Srinagar for treatment. One of the injured policemen has been identified as Anwar Ali of Hawal Srinagar while the identity of another cop injured in the blast was not ascertained.
On June 24, police claimed to have got vital clues about a person who reportedly ‘handed over two grenades’ to the slain Pakistani prisoner Wahid Noor Khan of Rawlakote Pakistan administered Kashmir (PaK), killed in a mysterious blast last week in Sopore.
Deputy Inspector General of police (DIG) North Gareeb Das told media that the man who is behind the incident has almost been identified by the police.
“We have got a clue and there is a person who is most likely instrumental in passing on the grenades to the prisoner. But at this time we cannot call it an exact identification because we have got some of clues and have zeroed in on that fellow, since he has gone underground,” DIG said.
He added his move of going underground has corroborated police’s suspicion. “We also called him but he didn’t turn up. The boy is from Sopore only and police is very sure about him. First we want to complete our investigation and rest of the details will be given later,” he added.
He also said the person was watching the movements of the prisoner from Sopore and was following him all the time. “Police has got more clues that cannot be discussed as of now and we also don’t want to expose his name because it will be too early and may hamper our investigation process.”
He said the probe is not over yet in the case and the policemen who were injured in the incident, would also be questioned by investigators after their recovery.  
Hizbul Mujahideen militant Wahid Noor Khan alias Hamza was produced in Sopore Court by a police party on Saturday last week. The under trial was lodged in Central Jail, Srinagar. Soon after producing him in the court, the party along with the slain militant left for Central Jail in a police vehicle.
As soon as the vehicle reached near Hygam-some nine kilometers from the Apple Town Sopore-a stray grenade blast took place inside the vehicle leaving the prisoner and the constable dead and four policemen injured.
Moreover, sources in police said the absconder’s family has filed a missing complaint with police.
According to top police sources, he (Hamza) had changed his jacket and put both the grenades in its pockets in court complex.
“There are some unofficial versions available with police which suggest that someone handed over a black jacket to Hamza which carried two grenades and the Jacket was similar to the one Hamza was wearing,” sources said.

HOPE FOR PELLET VICTIM’S EYESIGHT RECOVERY 

June 29: The family of Sahil Zahoor, 19, who was recently injured by pellet ammunition, breathed a sigh of relief when Doctors, treating him, informed them that his vision might be saved.
Sahil Zahoor Chonka, a 19-year-old youth, son of Zahoor Ahmad of Nowhatta, was hit by pellet ammunition fired by state forces during a protest demonstration on June 27. He received pellets in his left eye, shoulders, chest, legs and face. Sahil claimed he was targeted despite not being part of any protest, which occurred in the backdrop of desecration of Jamia Masjid. 
Sahil was rushed to the hospital by two boys and was operated upon by doctors immediately as his left eye was severely injured.
According to Dr Junaid Wani at SMHS hospital at Srinagar, who operated Sahil’s eye “We have repaired the tear caused by the pellet but two pellets are still stuck in his eye which is a cause for concern,”.  The doctor expressed that his eye is in danger and to comment further on his vision recovery is possible only after investigation. 
Sahil’s father Zahoor Ahmad, a labourer, said his son has already served three months in prison on charges of distributing goggles among stone throwers so that they can save their eyes from pellet ammunition.
“If he were such a distributor how come he forgot his own safety,” Zahoor said.
Zahoor said that in 2012, Sahil had been hit by a CRPF vehicle while he was coming out of a mosque after evening prayers. Accusing him of attacking the vehicle, the CRPF had bundled him into the same vehicle. Only after the protest by residents of Khwaja Bazar was Sahil freed, he added.
“When Sahil was being examined in SMHS Hospital, police officials on June 28 from Kaka Sarai police station confiscated his Identity Card, a cheque and his photographs,” Zahoor said.
“Only after doctors told them (policemen) that he needs to be admitted for treatment the policemen leave. They were here to arrest him again,” said his father.
On June 29, Sahil’s family breathed a sigh of relief when Doctors informed them that his vision might be saved.
“The nerves and retina of his left eye are safe and that is good news. There is hope that his vision may be saved,” said Dr Junaid Wani, head department of Opthalmology at the SMHS Hospital.
The hope that his vision could be saved arose after encouraging results of B-scan in his left eye, which confirmed there was no damage to the nerves.
“Damage to nerve closes any chance of retaining vision,” Dr Junaid added.
Doctors said on June 28 two pellets stuck in his eye and cannot be removed.

AIIMS WITHHOLDING RTI INFO ON PELLET VICTIMS: ACTIVIST

June 28: The All India Institute of Medical Sciences (AIIMS) has been withholding details about Kashmiri pellet gun victims, according to a Hurriyat Conference (M) activist who had sought the information under the Right to Information Act.
Mannan Bukhari, who heads the Human Rights Division of Hurriyat (M), had filed an application in February this year asking AIIMS authorities to provide a list of the pellet victims from Kashmir who were admitted to the hospital, and how many of them were operated upon or had lost vision partially or fully.
Replying to the query in March, Dr Rajendra Prasad Centre for Ophthalmic Science, AIIMS, had written “nil” against these queries in the RTI form.
Later, Bukhari filed an appeal against the RTI reply from the AIIMS in April, this time attaching his request with two AIIMS prescriptions issued to two pellets victims, Amir and Wasim, who have lost their eyesight due to pellets fired by government forces.
Responding to the appeal in June, AIIMS superintendent Dr Shakti Kumar Gupta had said that patient information is maintained according to the nature of injuries, not the cause of injuries. He had asked Mannan that the centre will provide him the information sought if he could give it the details about pellet victims.
Mannan said he had submitted the details in the second appeal, but the centre has not come out with the details yet.
The government introduced used pellet guns to suppress the non-violent pro-freedom protests during the summer uprising of 2010. More than 120 people, mostly young boys, were shot dead during peaceful protests and hundreds of others were injured.
The hospital authorities in Kashmir report that the patients hit by pellets are swelling in numbers. They said that over the five years since the mass protests in 2010, they have seen more than 700 pellet victims. About 70 per cent of them had lost sight in one or both eyes.

KASHMIR UNIVERSITY STUDENT RELEASED ON BAIL
STUDENTS ACCUSED AUTHORITIES OF USING FORCE

June 29: The continuous protest and suspension of class work for days in Kashmir University against the arrest of a student by police to press the university authorities to intervene into the release the student, a local court in Srinagar bailed out Muzamil Farooq Dar, whose arrested on June 22 triggered massive anti-India protests at the campus. Earlier, immediately after the student’s arrest, the students have announced an indefinite strike against the arrest of Muzamil.
“Muzamil has been bailed out by a local court. However, we are yet to receive the bail order. He will be released as soon as we get a copy,” SHO, Rajbagh Kuldeep told media.
A student of English Department, Muzamil, a resident of Kakapora, Pulwama, was arrested by the special investigating team of the police from Raj Bagh police station. His arrested triggered massive anti-India protests in the University prompting the officials to suspend class work till his bail. Meanwhile, in solidarity with Kashmir University students, students of Islamic University of Science and Technology (IUST) demonstrated against Muzamil’s arrest at the campus in Awnatipora.
Carrying placards that read “stop arbitrary detentions,” “dear KU students we are with you,” and “stop beating innocents,” the protesters demanded that the student should be released immediately.
Earlier, while the protests were going on in KU, on June 26, scores of Kashmir University students accused the authorities of using force to evict them from hostels on Friday following violent protests against the arrest of a student.
Class work was suspended and hostel boarders had been asked to vacate their rooms by 9 am on Friday for an indefinite period after student protesters clashed with the police at the campus yesterday.
“We decided not to vacate our rooms. We have been preparing for examinations. The NET (National Eligibility Test) is scheduled on Sunday. How can we take our books and goods and travel to far off places and return in two days,” said Arifa, a student.
However, the students said, the chief proctor came to each hostel and knocked at their doors, while threatening the boarders of dire consequences if they do not leave.
“We refused to leave but he told us that he would register cases against us for participating in protesting against Muzamil’s arrest,” a group of students told media.
“He told us that all students were under scanner for protesting at the campus. We still resisted. Then he forcibly evicted us. Girls too were thrown out,” the students said.
The girl students demonstrated and asked the authorities to review their decision to vacate hostels, but in vain.
Hundreds of policemen had been deployed outside the university to prevent protests.
“They (varsity authorities) dumped the girls from south Kashmir districts into two vehicles and took them to Khanbal, while girls from north were dropped at Batamaloo bus stand,” the students said, adding, “Boys are also being forcibly ferried to Nowgam railway station and Batmaloo.”
While the students accused the police of firing empty shots in air, the vice-chancellor told the media that flash bang stun guns were used to scare the students away because they were damaging university properties.
About forcible eviction of hostel boarders, Vice-chancellor Khursheed Andrabi said the varsity had already asked the students to leave.
“Those who are resisting the university orders are mischief mongers. They are adamant to break the rules,” Andrabi said. “It is not a big deal to come on Sunday and appear in NET exams. We have suspended all activities at the university.”
Andrabi said by suspending class work and closing hostels, the administration was “safeguarding students’ interests”.

KASHMIR VARSITY SEEKS ARMY FUNDS 
RULES OUT LIFTING OF BAN ON STUDENT UNION

Financially hurt Kashmir University has got a much needed shot in the arm with Army’s decision to help the state-run institution with two vehicles, computers and other equipment it was struggling to procure.
This is the first time in its more than six-decade history that the university had sought help from outside.
 (
QUOTE – UNQUOTE
These students are part of the system and why can't we trust them in running university matters like library and canteen. A students' union introduces them to a democratic system and there is no reason for institutions for not having these. 
— 
Naeem
 
Akhter
, education minister 
I have made my stand clear on this issue. I don't think there is any need of students' union in Kashmir University. If there are any problems, students can directly come to me. We need to focus on academics more, as there has been an impact on education of students in the past 20 years. — 
Prof 
Khursheed
 
Andrabi
, vice chancellor of Kashmir University
There are other things than conflict. A union cannot be used for those reasons. A union in any institution is also used for cleaning the corrupt system. 
— 25-year-old Samir Ahmad
There is no culture of having an elected and registered students' union neither in colleges nor universities, which is a very sorry state. The youth in a way have no say. — 
Yuaish
 Ahmad, a 24-year-old postgraduate student at CUK
)“We had appealed to the Army and the corporate entities for financial help…I must appreciate Army for coming forth with open hands,” Kashmir University V-C Khurshid Andrabi said.
The university officials say the “call for help” was made after the September floods.
“We have seven campuses running and needed money for basic infrastructure in these campuses,” V-C Andrabi said.
“We made a call, and the Army and HDFC Bank responded positively”.
Registrar Zaffar Ahmad Reshi told media that waiting for the state government to step in wasn’t an option.
“We are starving of funds. We are facing difficulty in running the new campuses because of funds crunch,” Reshi said “Government has its problems but we can’t run without money”.
The aid, worth Rs 25 lakh, came from Army’s 15 Corps. It has also pledged support for the university’s Kupwara campus.
“We have been trying to contribute specifically to the education sector,” General Officer Commanding (GoC), 15 Corps, Lt Gen Subrata Saha said adding that army is also running about 30 schools in the Valley. He also offered to sponsor fresh tours for students of the university.
A group of students, however, termed the gesture as an “extension of Army’s Operation Sadbhavna”.
“It is politicisation of education to seek Army’s help,” said a student.
Earlier, last month on May 27, the Vice-Chancellor, Kashmir University, rules out lifting of the ban on the Kashmir University Students’ Union (KUSU). 
 “I fail to understand how an educated person like you can ask this question. Our 25 years have gone waste. Do we need to compensate for the loss of those 25 years or make a students’ union? You should tell me that there is no need for a student union. You should tell me that we should move ahead,” Andrabi told media on the sidelines of a seminar titled “Inclusive participation in growth of education” organised by the proctorial wing at Gandhi Bhawan auditorium in the campus. He was responding to a question on whether student activism would be allowed and the ban on KUSU lifted.

GOVT ORDERS PROBE INTO LAST YEAR’S ALLEGED FAKE ENCOUNTER BY ARMY IN LOLAB

June 12: The Jammu and Kashmir government has ordered a magisterial inquiry into the killing of seven suspected militants in north Kashmir’s Kupwara district on February last year.
The army had claimed it had killed seven militants during an encounter in Dardpora forests of Lolab area in Kupwara. However locals had refuted the claim, alleging it was a ‘staged encounter’.
As per the order of the Deputy Commissioner (DC) Kupwara Kumar R Ranjan, Additional District Magistrate Kupwara, who is also the district Assistant Commissioner Revenue (ACR), has been nominated as the inquiry officer. The inquiry is to be conducted as per guidelines of the National Human Rights Commission.
“As reported by the Superintendent of Police Kupwara, vide his letter no. CRB/16/15-12123 dated May 20, 2015, seven militants in Dardpora forests have been killed during an encounter on 24, February 2014 and (he) has requested for conducting of magisterial inquiry,” reads DC Kupwara’s order, dated May 21, 2015.
	The inquiry officer was required to submit the report in seven days, but has sought more time to conduct the investigation. “The encounter has happened a year earlier, and it is impossible to complete investigation in such a sensitive case in just a week,” ACR Firdous Raina told Kashmir Reader. According to Raina, it will take more than a year to investigate the incident. “We have to dig deep in such cases,” he said.
Villagers in the area had alleged the army killed seven men in a fake encounter and, during subsequent protests, had torched the main gate and bunkers of the Lalpora police station. More than ten civilians were also reportedly injured in the ensuing police action. No medals for police sans judicial probes into deaths.
The Ministry of Home Affairs (MHA) has sought copies of magisterial inquiries, along with the acceptance report of the court in each case, with reference to the issue of gallantry awards for police officials. This comes after the Supreme Court’s direction on holding a magisterial inquiry under section 176 Cr.PC in all cases of deaths which occur in the course of police firing.
Pertinently, a number of police officials from Kashmir zone have been recommended for the President’s police medal for gallantry in recognition of their services in 29 different actions in Kashmir, official sources said.

ON ARMY DIKTAT GOVT. TEACHERS CONDUCT SURVEY

The Govt. teachers at Goshboug, housing 450 families, were instructed by a clerk of Wasun Rabid Farm (army) Camp to conduct survey of the 15 villages falling within the camp’s jurisdiction. The teachers were instructed, on behalf of army camp commander, to collect the personal details from villagers like names, professions etc. 
The Informative Missive learned from its sources, the teachers were taken aback when directed by the army to conduct people’s survey of 15 villages of Ganderbal district. When the teachers politely objected to the army demand, that their job is to impart education and not to conduct surveys, as there is another department meat for it. They were told to oblige the orders and “do as they are being told’. 
The teachers accordingly apprised the Zonal Education Officer (ZEO) about the ‘new assignment’ by the army. The ZEO instead of taking up the matter with the army and Director Education asked the teachers “do what they are being told to do by the army”    
The army’s pressure, according to our source, pays off and the survey was conducted as directed by the army and the report was handed over to the army’s 29 Rashtiya Rifles. Worthwhile to mention here, while the teachers were on course of house to house survey, they found the door of the houses were already marked. When enquired from the villagers they were informed their houses were marked two months ago by the army troopers. 

JOURNALISTS PROTEST AGAINST THRASHING OF GREATER KASHMIR SCRIBE

June 22: Dozens of journalists, working for various local and national media houses, held the protest near the Press Colony here after Javaid Malik, who works with Greater Kashmir daily, was allegedly beaten by some guards of the minister.
Holding placards that read "Solidarity with Javaid Malik", "End VIP culture" and "CM must break his silence", the journalists demanded action against the accused and resignation of the minister.
The journalists were supported by independent MLA from Langate, Sheikh Abdul Rashid, members of a trade organization Kashmir Economic Alliance (KEA) and some separatist groups.
They also held a peaceful sit-in at the commercial hub, Lal Chowk.
Malik had June 21 alleged that he was thrashed by the cops for objecting to lewd remarks passed at his wife by one of the guards.
"I and my wife were going to buy vegetables from the local market when the minister's cavalcade started honking horn relentlessly at Bagh-e-Mehtab. I allowed the cavalcade the right to passage as soon as possible," Malik said.
He alleged that some guards of Lone, who was also sitting in one of the vehicles, argued with him over the delay in giving passage to the cavalcade.
"As they were leaving, one of the guards passed some lewd remarks at my wife. I gave a chase to the minister's cavalcade and wanted to bring it to his notice," the journalist said.
He claimed that as he walked towards Lone's vehicle to bring the matter to his notice, the guards pounced on him and thrashed him.
"The guards were so rude. They kept on beating me despite my wife pleading before them," Malik said.

KILLED NARBAL YOUTH’S FAMILY ALLEGES POLICE TRYING A ‘HUSH-UP’
‘THEY OFFERED US A COMPROMISE; RS 10 LAKH’
POLICE DENIES ALLEGATIONS, SAYS INVESTIGATIONS INTO THE CASE ARE GOING ON

June 10: The family of Suhail Ahmad Sofi, the teenager who was shot dead by police in Narbal on April 18, has accused the police of trying to force them into a comprise to prevent two of their men accused in the killing from being tried in a court of law.
 	“Around five days ago, we were called to the local police station where a senior police official told us to enter into a compromise to hush up the case,” Suhail’s cousin, Tariq Ahmad Sofi told media. “The officer offered us Rs 10 lakh and asked us not to pursue the case. He told us we should not appear in the court on the date of hearing. He also said witnesses should change their testimonies before the court and not mention the names of the two cops who have been charged with Suhail’s murder,” he added.
The family also alleged that the police told them the case would run for years and later die its own death. “We refused to compromise,” Tariq said.
The family accused the police of delaying investigations into the case so that it recedes from public memory. “After the compromise offer, the police told us we should write an application wherein we would give our consent not to conduct a post-mortem on Suhail’s body,” Tariq said. “But we told them we do not want to create any hurdles in the investigations. If they deem it fit to conduct a post-mortem, they can carry it out,” he added. The family said the post-mortem should have been carried out when Suhail was killed, however the police did not do that since “right from the start” they have been trying to “create loopholes in the case so that the guilty are not punished”. “Why are they even now making excuses and offering us money?” Tariq asked.
Besides, the family said the police recorded the statements of two witnesses to Suhail’s killing before the magistrate. “Among these two, the father of the victim, Abdul Ahad Sofi, was not an eyewitness,” Tariq said: “The three main eyewitnesses were not taken before the magistrate to record their statements. The police don’t want to probe the case truthfully. They know their two men are involved in the killing,” Tariq added.
But the police categorically rejected the charge that they had offered a compromise to the family. “We have not offered any compromise. This is a baseless allegation,” Senior Superintendent of Police, Budgam, Fayaz Ahmad Lone said.
Lone said they have recorded the statements of witnesses under Section 164 (A). “All those witnesses who appeared before us, we recorded their statements,” he said, adding, “Investigations into the case are going on.”
An important factor here is that while the government may consider or bin the recommendations of the magisterial investigation, it cannot do so sans the police investigation. It has been alleged that the police had adopted a lackadaisical approach in the case right from the beginning. It had taken them twelve days to visit the place where the killing took place and record the statements of Suhail’s family members.
Suhail, a class 10 student, was shot dead by the police when he had stepped out of his house to see whether his school was open or not in the wake of a shutdown called by Hurriyat Conference (G) against the arrest of senior resistance leader Masrat Alam Bhat. Suhail’s killing had triggered massive protests in many parts of the Valley. 

SOLDIERS RUN AMOK IN OLD BARAMULLA, DAMAGE VEHICLES

June 30: Rashtriya Rifles soldiers went berserk in old Baramulla town on Monday night and damaged about a dozen vehicles.
Eyewitnesses told media that a patrolling party of 46 Rashtriya Rifles smashed window panes and side lights of the vehicles parked at Azad Gung, Iqbal Market, Ganie Hamam areas at about 11 pm on June 29.
“The RR party was on way to their camp in a bus when it suddenly stopped and started to damage vehicles parked on the roadside,” Abdul Rahim (name changed), an eyewitness to the incident said. He said the soldiers also abused the people.
Station house officer of Baramulla police station Aijaz Geelani told media that police is investigating the case and by Wednesday they will lodge an FIR into the incident.
Commanding Officer of 46 RR Colonel Akash did not respond to repeated calls from this newspaper.

29 MILITANTS KILLED IN KASHMIR IN 2015: ARMY

July 13: As many as 29 militants have been killed in counter-infiltration and anti-militancy operations in Kashmir this year so far.
“A total of 29 terrorists were eliminated in operations along the Line of Control and in the hinterland,” a defence spokesman said after a high-level security review meeting held at Army’s Badamibagh Headquarters Srinagar.
The meeting, co-chaired by GoC 15 Corps Lt Gen Subrata Saha and DGP K Rajendra Kumar, was attended by senior army officers, police officials, paramilitary officers and heads of various intelligence units in the Valley.
The meeting took stock of the results of the counter infiltration and anti-militancy operations in 2015 so far and reviewed the overall security situation in the Valley to draw out the future security strategy, the spokesman said.



	DATE 
	TROOPERS
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS
	OTHERS

	June 01
	-
	1
	1
	-

	June 02
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 03
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 04
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 05
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 06
	-
	3
	-
	-

	June 07
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 08
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 09
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 10
	1
	-
	-
	-

	June 11
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 12
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 13
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 14
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 15
	-
	-
	1
	-

	June 16
	1
	-
	-
	-

	June 17
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 18
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 19
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 20
	1
	2 (1 Pak militant prisoner)
	-
	-

	June 21
	-
	1
	-
	-

	June 22
	-
	2
	1
	

	June 23
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 24
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 25
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 26
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 27
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 28
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 29
	-
	-
	-
	-

	June 30
	-
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL 
	3
	9
	7
	0

	                                                                                               IN TOTO 
	19 KILLINGS 


CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
June 01: A civilian was injured when unidentified gunmen tried to blow up a cell phone tower with a hand grenade in Habba Kadal area of Srinagar district. The injured has been identified as Shahoor Imtiyaz of Habba Kadal. While two dead bodies were recovered from a site of encounter In Tangdar area of Kupwara district. According to officials one of the dead was a civilian while the other was militants. However, none of them were identified. 
June 02: No incident of violence reported.  
June 03: No incident of violence reported.  
June 04:   A man was killed and six people, including two policemen, were injured as clashes erupted between police and a group of Sikhs who were protesting against removal of posters of slain Khalistani militant leader Jarnail Singh Bhindranwale in Jammu city.  The slain has been identified as Jagjit Singh, 33, of Chawla village of RS Pura, Jammu. 
June 05: No incident of violence reported. 
June 06: Army claimed its forces have killed three militants in a gunfight Tutmari, Gali along LOC in Handwara area of district Kupwara. None of the militants have been identified. Meanwhile, for the third consecutive day Sikh protesters continued against the killing of its member by police on June 4 in Jammu province. 
June 07: No incident of violence reported.
June 08: A policeman was attacked and injured by unknown assailants in Jammu province. The police constable was posted at residence of a senior police officer. 
June 09: Altaf-ur-Rehman Sheikh, 46, an activist of Hurriyat Conference-led by Syed Ali Shah Geelani, was shot dead by unknown gunmen in Sopore, the epicenter of a series of attacks on telecommunication networks during the past one month. The gunmen fired at Altaf in Noor Colony area of the town when he walking towards his home from sub-district hospital Sopore after completing his night duty. 
June 10: A CRPF trooper ends his life by consuming poison in Katra belt of Reasi distroict of Jammu province. The soldier was identified as Manoj Kumar posted at Kakryal training camp. People observed protests and strike in Baramulla district to protest the killing of Hurriyat (G) activist killed by unknown gunmen on June 09. To deal with the protests police resorted to teargas shelling. Clashes between protests and state forces were reported from Palhalan.  
June 11: No incident of violence.  
June 12: A shopkeeper, traders leader, was shot dead by unknown gunmen in Bomia area of Sopore, Baramulla district. The slain civilian has been identified as Khurseed Ahmad Bhat, 35. 
June 13: No incident of violence reported.  
June 14: A former JKLF militant-turned-civilian was killed by unknown gunmen in Badamibagh area of Sopore. The deceased has been identified as Mehraj-ud-Din son of Mohammad Ahsan Dar of Sopore. 
June 15: In yet another wanton killing, gunmen killed another former militant identified as Aijaz Ahmad Reshi son of Abdul Rahim of Sopore. Aijaz was fired in his head.  
June 16: A policeman has been shot dead by suspected militants in Bijbehara town of South Kashmir. The slain was identified as Constable Arif Nazir (belt No.-1922/A). 
June 17: No incident of violence reported.  
June 18: No incident of violence reported.  
June 19: Government blocked the roads leading towards Sopore where the pro-freedom groups have called for a march to protest the civilian killings by unknown gunmen for some time now. In Srinagar downtown, areas fall under the jurisdiction of seven police stations were literally cordoned by the police and CRPF and no movement was allowed whatsoever. In a press statement CRPF claimed its ASI was injured when a group of stone throwing youth attacked its Morch at Zainakote. 
June 20: A Pakistan administered Kashmir militant prisoner and a policeman died in a mysterious explosion that took place inside a police vehicle escorting the under trail. The deceased has been identified as Wahid Noor Khan. In another incident encounter with troops one militant was killed in Kulgam area of Machil sector. The slain militant has not been identified by the army. 
June 21: Army claimed it killed another militant in Machil sector of frontier district of Kupwara. However, the army didn’t identify the militant.  
June 22: Two Hizbul Mujahideen fighters and a civilian were killed in an encounter with army troopers in Kulgam area of Tral. However, the locals blamed the Indian forces of killing the civilian with intent. The deceased civilian has been identified as Asif.  In a separate incident, 3 RAW officials were injured in an explosion that took place inside army’s 19 Infantry Division at Baramulla. 
June 23: Clashes between protesters and state forces took place in Kulgam area where two militants and a civilian were killed during an encounter on June 22. 
June 24: No incident of violence reported.  
June 25: No incident of violence reported.  
June 26: Police personnel fired tear gas shells and allegedly resorted to high-handedness against devotees at Srinagar’s historic Jamia Masjid while chasing a group of youth who took out procession. Some persons, dressed in civvies, believed to be from political parties beat up two local photo journalists who were covering the incident.  
June 27: Police to disband the protesters, demonstrating against the hurling of teargas shells into Jamia Masjid by police, fired in air and hurled teargas shells in several parts of Srinagar. In the clashes around two dozen persons some policemen were injured.   
June 28: Not incident of violence reported. 
June 29: A police man was injured when attacked by unknown gunmen at Shaheedi Chowk in Jammu.  
June 30: Not incident of violence reported.
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